SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 1, 2016
8:05 a. m

8:05:37 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 8:05 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator John Coghill; Jordan Schilling, Staff, Senator John
Coghill; Lauree Morton, Executive Director, Council for
Donestic Viol ence and Sexual Assault, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Carmen CQutierrez, Omer, Justice Inprovenent Solutions,
Anchor age; Kathleen MlLaughlin, Director, Partners Reentry
Center, Anchorage; Jayson Witeside, Division of Mtor
Vehi cl es, Anchorage; Gary Folger, Departrment of Public
Saf ety, Anchor age.

SUMVARY
SB 91 OWNI BUS CRI M LAW and PROCEDURE; CORRECTI ONS

SB 91 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb91l



SENATE BILL NO 91

"An Act relating to protective orders; relating to
conditions of release; relating to comunity work
service; relating to credit toward a sentence of
inprisonnment for certain persons under electronic
nmonitoring; relating to the restoration under certain
circunstances of an admnistratively revoked driver's
license, privilege to drive, or privilege to obtain a
i cense; allowing a reduction of penalties for
of f enders successful ly conpl eti ng court-ordered
treatment programs for persons convicted of driving
under the influence; relating to termnation of a
revocation of a driver's license; relating to
restoration of a driver's license; relating to credits
toward a sentence of inprisonment, to good tine
deductions, and to providing for earned good tine
deducti ons for pri soners; relating to t he
disqualification of persons «convicted of certain
felony drug offenses from participation in the food
stanp and tenporary assistance progranms; relating to
probation; relating to mtigating factors; relating to
treatment prograns for prisoners; relating to the
duties of the comm ssioner of corrections; anmending
Rules 32 and 35(hb), Al aska Rules of Crim nal
Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

8:06: 27 AM

Co-Chair Kelly queried the tab nunber for the neeting. Co-
Chair MacKinnon replied that the neeting would refer to tab
nunber 2.

SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL, introduced hinself. He announced t hat
he woul d provide a high | evel overview

Co- Chair MacKinnon stated that tab 3 was the reference for
the day's neeting. The day's topics would include the
"Msc. and Other" sections that had not yet been covered.

Senator  Coghil | remarked that the conmm ssion process
included an exam nation of pretrial sentencing and
comunity supervision. He furthered that there were other
itens in the bill that did not fit into that category, so

they were collected into the "Qther" category. He noted
that Sections 142 through 146 included strategies that the
conmm ssion could provide oversight. He |ooked at Section

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/01/16 8:05 A M



142, page 88, lines 17 through 19, which outlined what was
set in order. He renmarked that he would also discuss
proposed additions to that section. He read from page 88,
line 17, "shall evaluate the effect of sentencing |aws and
crimnal justice practices on a crimnal justice systemto
eval uate whether those sentencing laws, crimnal practices,
provi de for protection of t he publi c; comunity
condemmation of the offender; the rights of the victins;
the rights of the accused; and the rights of the person
convicted." He shared that there was an attenpt to
continually balance that evaluation. He noted that the
hi ghlighted area stated that "the commi ssion shall annually
make recomrendations.” He stressed that the bill asked the
comm ssion to provide a denonstration of recommendations to
t he governor and the |egislature on how savings and reforns
should be reintroduced for recidivism benefits. He | ooked
at page 89, line 23, and remarked that the comm ssion would
appoint a working group to provide the recomendati ons; and
enter into data sharing agreenents wth the Judicial
Council at the University of Alaska (UA). He |ooked at page
90, which included a new subsection that outlined further
requirenments of the commission. He stated that the data
mning helped with review and report to the legislature

governor, and the public on how the new legislation was
working. He stressed that the oversight was inportant,
because there were new concepts in the law. He stated that
there were driving licensing privileges included in the
bill. He shared that many people had their driver's
| icenses revoked because of court action and administrative
action. He shared that the legislation allowed for a
process to regain their |icense under sone conditions. He
stressed that the intent was to put the people into
productive work, as long as they follow the accountable
condi ti ons.

8:12: 54 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted that page 50, Section 81 addressed
the driver's |license provisions.

Senator Coghill reiterated that he wanted to provide a high
| evel overview, but stated that his staff nenber could
provide detailed information. He wanted to provide the
rationale for the provisions of the bill. He remarked that
the provisions were carefully considered. He shared that
the Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW) and Court System had
wor ked together on the driver's |icense provisions. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 04/01/16 8:05 A M



shared that the administrative license revocations stated
that the DW could take away the driver's license if one
was stopped for Driving Under the Influence (DU ); however,
there was no current provision for due process under |aw.
He stated that the legislation allowed for two conditions
for reissuing of the driver's |icense.

8:13:58 AM

JORDAN SCHI LLI NG  STAFF, SENATOR JOHN COGHILL, explained
that the provision allowed for reissuing of the driver's
| icense upon acquittal or case dism ssal.

Senator Coghill stressed that those two conditions were not
presently in law. He remarked that, currently, an acquittal
would still result in an admnistrative revocation which
the DW could maintain. He felt that the driver's license
provision in the bill allowed for due process. He discussed
food stanps. He stated that a convicted offender for a
robbery or a violent crime who had served tine and was on
probation currently qualified for food stanps. He remarked
that those convicted of drug crinmes were not qualified for
food stanps under federal law. He remarked that there was
an exception that allowed the state to provide food stanps.
The legislation included that election, and shared that
Al aska was currently one of only six states that did not
include that election. He shared that the provision was
inportant for post-incarceration planning, to put the
person back into the work force to keep themfroma life of
crime. He further addressed public assistance. He shared
that those convicted of a drug felony who went on public
assistance and failed drug test would lose their right to
assistance. He stressed that the intent was based on a
public safety issue, and was an incentive for individuals
to enroll in prograns. He remarked that the provision was
j uxt aposed agai nst those who may worked in a field who were
required to undergo drug testing. He felt that he would
like to explore the "flex point" of that provision. He
stated that a person who was 90 days from returning to
society would be provided a reentry program planning. He
remarked that it was a new program which dealt with issue
such as |ID issuance; work skill evaluation; etc. He
di scussed the comunity work service. He explained that
provision was in Sections 59 and 60. He shared that
community work service allowed for a way to pay a fine for
those who were not able to pay a fine. He stressed that the
provision did not allow for the election to go to jail. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/01/16 8:05 A M



stated that the limting of pretrial credit to 120 days was
in Sections 55 and 56.

8:19:25 AM

Senat or Coghi | | addressed electronic nonitoring, and
remarked that there was an intent to limt the anount of
time on electronic nmonitoring. He |ooked at the suspended
entry of judgnent in Section 61. He remarked that there was
an intent to change the suspended inposition of sentence.
He shared that, «currently, a guilty plea allowd for
enrollment in a program to waylay the jail time and
sentence. He remarked that there was an attenpt to nove
judgnment without a guilty plea. He felt that there was no
real value to the provision, because there was a current
program that was simlar to the suspended inposition
sentence. He remarked that there was an attenpt to not
allow for Court View under those conditions, but the first
commttee of referral amended to include Court View He
felt that some of the best work on the legislation was
related to victinms' rights. He shared that, currently, a
victim of donmestic violence had the right to have a
conference before plea agreenents. The bill opened the
conference to all felons considered for a plea bargain. The
intent was to "shine a light" on the plea agreenent deals.
He felt that it was a true victins' rights benefit.

Senator Hoffrman queried the inplenentation cost of the
victinms' rights. Senator Coghill agreed to provide that
i nformation.

Co-Chair MacKinnon felt that the previous day's sectiona
analysis presentation was remarkably informative. M.
Shilling thanked the commtt ee.

8:23:35 AM

LAUREE MORTQON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, COUNCIL FOR DQOVESTIC
VI OLENCE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT (CDVSA), JUNEAU, discussed the
presentation, "CDVSA and Reinvestnent" (copy on file). She
remarked that the commttee had a report generated as part
of the Crimnal Justice Conm ssion's reinvestnment act wth
the Victim Service Roundtable. She shared that there were
two roundtables held the prior fall, and there was a
nat i onal expert who worked wth Pew. That expert
interviewed several survivors of violent crine, and their
comments were included in the report. She noted that there

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/01/16 8:05 A M



were ten priority recommendations from the Victim Service
Roundt abl es, and were "rolled up" into priorities in the
overall crimmnal justice system report. Those priorities
led to Section 61 of the bill, which added uncodified
| anguage instructing the <council to create or expand
comuni ty- based vi ol ence prevention progranm ng and
services for victinse of a crinme involving donestic violence
or sexual assault. She noted that Alaska was the first

state i nvol ved W th t he Pew Justice Rei nvest nent
Initiative, which listed victinms' issues as one of the top
priorities. She advocated a conprehensive strategic

approach to reinvestnment dollars to further prevention
efforts and strengthen services throughout the state. She
remarked that Al aska had the highest nunber of assaults:
intimate partner violence; sexual violence; and child
sexual abuse. She stated that nost of the information
supporting the nunber of assaults was nostly anecdotal or
based on scattered reports to |law enforcenent until 2010

She shared that, in 2010, the first statew de Al aska
victim zation survey revealed 58 out of every 100 Al aska
wonen suffered intimte partner violence, sexual violence,
or both over their Ilifetime. She stated that subsequent
regi onal surveys from 2011 showed a consistency with those
overall state nunbers. She remarked that there was data
from wonen that supported the reports. She stated that
there was now a focused attention on how to prevent the
crimes from occurring.

Ms. Morton discussed slide 2, "Alaska Victimzation Survey
Trends from 2010 to 2015." She noted that, in 2015, there
was a resurvey at a statewide level that found that the
focused attention had paid off. She shared that the 2015
Statewide Victimzation Survey showed the decline in the
nunmber of wonen who had suffered intimte partner violence,
sexual violence, or both; not only over their lifetinme, but
in the prior year in which the study was conduct ed.

Senator Dunleavy wondered why there was a decline. M.
Morton replied that she would address the reason. She
remarked that it was unknown whether it attributed to the
prevention efforts, but the prevention efforts was the only
change in the five years. She stressed that there were
victim services and other systens in place during those
five years. She reiterated that the only change in those
five years were the focused primary prevention efforts. She
shared that some of the reduction was attributed to the
work in communities on prevention efforts.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/01/16 8:05 A M



Senat or Dunl eavy wondered whether  Governor Parnell's
admnistration had initiated prevention efforts in that
timeframe. Ms. Morton replied in the affirmative.

8:28: 36 AM

Ms. Morton continued to discuss slide 2:
I ntimate Partner Violence:
Annual preval ence decreased by 32 percent.
6,556 fewer victinms in 2015 than in 2010.
Sexual Vi ol ence:
Annual preval ence decreased by 33 percent.

3,072 fewer victinms in 2015 than in 2010.
Wile the rates are trending in the right direction,
t hey remai n unacceptably high.

Ms. Morton addressed slide 3, "Prevention Tipping Point."
She shared that the Network on Donestic Violence and Sexua
brought the state the Center for Disease Control's Delta
Project. She stated that there was an attenpt to sponsor
community readiness prograns in four of the communities to
work toward prevention. She shared that the chart showed
the inmpacts of building prevention capacity.

Ms. Morton | ooked at slide 4, "Social Ecol ogy":

Policies that support gender equity; nedia nessages
that pronmote non-violence; norm that reduce nmale
sexual entitlenent

Econom ¢ opportunities; conmunity connectedness;
norns around —vi ol ence; conmunity sanctions

Fam|ly values do not support violence; friends
attitudes do not support violence; positive peer role
nodel s; positive parenting

Able to neet basic needs; cultural connectedness;

negative view of vi ol ence; substance free
lifestyle; positive self-confidence

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/01/16 8:05 A M



Ms. Morton discussed slide 5, "Reinvestnment Costs."” She
believed that there was a cost estimate of approxinmately $5
mllion to be split between the Departnment of Health and
Social Services (DHSS) and the CDVSA. She renmarked that
should CDVSA receive $2.5 nillion in FY 17 wth an
addi tional $500,000 in the out years, the slide represented
a way to expend those dollars. She noted that there would
be conprehensive inplenentation of G een Dot throughout the
state in a staged series of communities. She remarked that
there would be a strengthened effort in comunities
currently inplenenting prevention plans. She shared that
grantees were building the foundation on which reductions
and violence would occur. She noted that there were 40
comunities across the state that were involved in sone
| evel of prevention activities. She shared that CDVSA
supported comrunity readiness and efforts to  build
prevention plans in communities that wanted prevention
efforts. She shared that honegrown prograns would be
eval uated to establish evidence of their effectiveness. She
stressed that investing in conmunity projects require a
noti ceable effect of the progranms. She shared that there
was also a desire to continue research in reduction in
intimate partner violence and sexual violence; and to be
able to know about changes in social norns that support
those crines. She asked for the addition of one program
coordinator to help nmanage the projects and provide the
appropriate level of technical assistance and nonitoring of
t he grant funds.

8:34: 38 AM

V5. Morton highlighted slide 6, "Expandi ng Existing
Prograns”:

Fai r banks,

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks,
Akhi ok Vill age,

W angel |,

None,

Di scovery Cove,

Crai g,

Kodi ak,

Larsen Bay,

Kot zebue,

Native Village of Quzinkie,
Native Village of Port Lions,

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 04/01/16 8:05 A M



A d Har bor,
Pet er sbur g,
D |lung ham
Bet hel ,
Honer ,
Anchor age,
Kl awock

Ms. Morton presented a video for the G een Dot Program

Senat or Bi shop wondered whet her the G een Dot Program was a
school district function. M. Mrton replied that CDVSA
primarily provided the training to inplement Green Dot in
communities as a whole; not specifically to schools. She
shared that there was a school program for G een Dot that
districts could inplenment. She shared that the program in
Homer was working with the mddle schools. She stated that
there was a website for Geen Dot that gave a Ilist of
activities and materials used in the different comunities.
She remarked that the program was not necessarily school -
based, but was for comunities as a whol e.

Senat or Bishop shared that his office would exam ne G een
Dot's prograns.

Ms. Morton shared that violence in the community was a
collection of individual choices to do harm She stated
that a "red dot" was the noment in tine where soneone's
words, choices, or actions contributed to, or tolerated
violence in sone way. She stated that nore "red dots" were
added to the map when nore Al askans "choose to stay out of
it." She explained that "green dot" assumed everyone had a
positive role they could play around this issue. She
stressed that nost people did not want anyone to get hurt.
She asserted that the reason people were not intervening
was because they did not know what to do, how to do it, or
when to do it. She explained that Geen Dot provided
realistic ways to get involved to take action to nmake
certain that those "red dots" did not go unanswered. She
stressed that there was a conmmitnent to change the culture
in Alaska from one that supported violence to one that did
not tolerate violence: where every citizen knows that they
are expected to do sonething with the right set of tools.

8:38: 50 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 04/01/16 8:05 A M



MVs. Morton | ooked at slide 7, "Expandi ng Existing

Prograns":

Grls on the Run: Strengthen existing programnms

and add three conmunities annually

Conpass: Expand COWPASS t hrough regional training

Coaching Boys Into Men: Strengthen existing

prograns and add two trainings annually

4R Expand comrunities as readi ness is achi eved

Ms. Morton discussed slide 8, "Expand Existing Prograns”:

I ncrease mni-grants to LeadOn! participants

Increase Wien | am an Elder by two
annual | y

conmuni ti es

Devel op subsequent sets of Talk Now Talk Oten cards

Ms. Morton presented a video.
Ms. Mbrton | ooked at slide 9, which was a vi deo.

8:44: 25 AM
AT EASE

8:46: 19 AM
RECONVENED

8:46:31 AM

Ms. Morton replayed the video fromslide 8.

Ms. Morton played the video on slide 9.

Ms. Morton | ooked at slide 10, "Evaluation and the R word":

Eval uati on

Wave-in to each strategy fromthe begi nning

Engage evaluators to assist
strengthen their own efforts

conmmuni ti es

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 04/01/16 8:05 A M



Share outcones and develop repository of AK
practice inforned/ evidence- based progranm ng

Resear ch

Conti nue the Al aska Victin zation
Survey

Regi onal surveys through 2019
3rd Statew de survey 2020
Know edge Attitudes Beliefs

8:53: 02 AM

Ms. Morton discussed slide 11, "Victim Services":
Regi onal prograns
Bar r ow, Kot zebue, None, Bet hel , D |'1'i ngham
Unal aska, Kodi ak, Cordova, Seward, Kenai, Honer,
Anchor age, Mat - Su, Fai r banks, Juneau, Sitka
Ket chi kan, Craig, Petersburg, Tetlin

Shelters and rape crisis centers together

Resi denti al Support
Advocacy Services

Expand and Create
FVPSAAK Vil | age and State Partnerships
Chil dren Services
Saf e Homes, Energing
Pr ogr ans
Engagi ng El ders
Local Forensic Exans

Senat or Bi shop thanked the presenter.

8:56: 07 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche | ooked at the 2015 survey. He felt that
the past year nunbers were better than the lifetine
nunbers. He remarked that, in a five-year span, there may

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 04/01/16 8:05 A M



not be an ability to significantly nove the lifetine

needl e. MVs. Morton replied that there would be a
presentation by the research director of victimzation
survey results. She stated that there was not an

expectation of the lifetime nunbers to show a significant
difference. She asserted that the association of the
particular prevention efforts with the reduction was that
there were five years of youth aging into the adult
popul ation who were now surveyed. She stressed that the
survey was for wonmen ages 18 and older, so there was
opportunity for younger wonmen to age into the popul ation
studi ed. She remarked that many were surprised to see the
lifetime reduction. She stressed that it was statistically
significant and the weighting of the nunbers were sound
with correct percentages. She deferred specific questions
about the structure of the survey to the research director.

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered if there was a switch to cel
phones after 2010 to conduct the survey. Ms. Morton replied
that cell phones and land |lines were used in both surveys.

8:58: 56 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried additional conments related to
pros specifically to sentencing, pretrial, and supervision.
She felt that the perpetrator would have the potential to
continue to reoffend. She wanted to ensure that electronic
monitoring would be effective. Ms. Mirton felt that the
of fenders would remain in strong sanctions against them
She shared that the bill sponsor was wlling to work to
address the concerns of victins.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon appreciated the change from "successful "
to "conpleted" treatnent. She wondered if sonmeone could
speak to the science and statistics related to recidivism

She remarked that convicted rapists and those convicted of
a crinme against a person would return to society. She
remarked that nost of the offenders did not have lifetine
sentences, but rather |ong sentences. She stressed that the
primary goal of the legislation was to keep people safe

not to save noney. She asserted that there was always a
hope that soneone could return to society to be productive
that benefited both the past victim and the future
community. She did not believe in the death penalty, but
had a hard tine wth sex offenders returning to society.
She felt that a biological reaction to an attraction that
was damaging to small children could not be changed during

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 04/01/16 8:05 A M



a treatnent process. She wondered whether there was sonmeone
who could provide scientific data on a batters prevention
program or sexual violence treatnent program which could
show statistically an opportunity for act ua
rehabilitation. MVs. Morton agreed to provide that
information. She asserted that there were various reasons
behind sex offences. She remarked that a person who
sexual |y assaults a child had a different "make up" than a
person who assaults an adult.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that she had been the executive
director of Standing Together Against Rape (STAR), and
recalled that there was a male psychologist in Anchorage
who had asserted to have a program to nodify the behavior
of a sexual perpetrator after conpletion of his program
She stressed that it was her job to advocate for victins,
so she had a difficult time processing the nessage with the
viol ence that she witnessed in a rape crisis center.

9:07:31 AM

Senator Dunleavy felt that "sexual assault” was a "catch
all" term He felt that there needed to be sone "carve
outs" included pedophilia. He asserted that there was

probably science that could profile on an individual's
chances for rehabilitation.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon stressed that her i nt ent behi nd
identifying the psychologist's gender was to assist in
identifying that person who contacted the agency.

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered if there were other issues
related to sexual assault and the changes in pretrial,
early release, and parole. She asked if there were any
issue that should be addressed. M. Morton replied that
there were not any i medi ate issues.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the position of CDVSA regarding
the difference between a nonviolent offenses of sexual
assault versus a violent offence. She noted the issue of
young people being placed on the sex offenders' registry,
when they engaged in consensual sex wth an underage
person. She renmarked that, ten years prior, she understood
that 95 percent of sexual perpetrators were male. She
wondered if there should be a way to review at the
statutory rape provision. Ms. Mrton shared that she wanted
to know nore about that issue, and shared that CDVSA did

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 04/01/16 8:05 A M



not have an official position on that issue. She shared
that it was difficult to think about sexual violence in
terms of it not being violent. She stressed that it was an
i nvasion of the other person's body. She felt that it was
the adult's responsibility to understand the age of the
person that they may be sexually involved. She felt that,
regardl ess of physical characteristics, the nental and
enotional experience may not be there for fully consent
She felt concern over an all owance.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that the conversation was about a
young man who nmight be 19 engaging in consensual sex wth
sonmeone under age, because they had not checked the
person's age. Ms. Morton stressed that a 19-year-old person
is not a child.

9:15: 40 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered if a pedophile or a sexual
deviant was an addict. Ms. Morton deferred to an expert to
di scuss.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stressed that this was an unconfortable
topic. She shared that individuals who may be enotionally
triggered by the ~conversation should contact a |[ocal
support system and shared that STAR had a hotline
available online and in her office. She thanked the
presenter. Ms. Mrton shared that the Safe Children's Task
Force was | ooking at inplenenting Erin and Bree's Law. She
felt that appropriate education materials and information
would help to establish appropriate boundaries in dating
rel ati onships regarding physical or sexual violence or
activity. She felt that the education may provide |ess of a
concern about the young people interacting sexually. She
stressed that children who had been provided wth
appropriate material may enhance school culture.

Co-Chair MacKinnon shared that she served on the task
force, and thanked Senator Dunleavy. She had shared wth
the governor sone ideas that the Senate Finance Committee
wanted to enact in the bill, and the governor had pushed
for what he thought was best for Al askans. She shared that
Senat or Dunl eavy helped to provide issues to assist young
people in receiving education. She felt that Senator
Dunl eavy received some unfair criticism related to sexua
violence and education. She remarked that there were
efforts to enact education prograns related to donestic

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 04/01/16 8:05 A M



vi ol ence and sexual assault; suicide; and al cohol and drug
treat nent.

9:20: 35 AM

CARVEN GUTI ERREZ, OMER, JUSTICE | MPROVEMENT SOLUTI ONS,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), introduced her testified in
support of the bill. She remarked that the state expended a
tremendous anount of noney on corrections. She shared that,
in FY 16, the state spent $324 nillion for Departnment of
Corrections (DOC); which did not include the Court System
Departnment of Public Safety (DPS), Departnent of Law (DCL),
and the cost of indigent crimnal defense. She stated that
two out of three inmates return to the system within the
first three years. She stressed that nobst of those people
return to the system wthin six nonths, because they are
rel eased without comunity-based support. She felt that the
state could not maintain the failed practices of the past,
and assune that there was a pronotion of public safety for
Al askans. She felt that the crimnal justice systemresults
denonstrated that prison alone was not a cost effective
public safety strategy. She supported the |egislation,
because it pronoted public safety reentry strategies ained
at not providing a "hand out", but a "hand wup." She
stressed that every tinme a former offender successfully
returned to their community, there was one less crine; |ess
crim nal justice expense; heal t hi er famlies and
communities; and the state had earned the goodw Il of
Al askan citizens by pursuing policies that pronoted public
safety. She hoped that SB 91 would provide a better way to
conduct crim nal justice busi ness. The | egi sl ation
supported evidence based recidivismreduction public safety
pronotion efforts through exam ning practices that had been
informed by a trenendous anount of crimnal justice

research. The bill hel ped t he crim nal justice
practitioners to identify those individuals who were at
risk of offending; identify their needs that nust be
addressed to decrease that risk; and enabled prison
officials and probati on of ficers to identify a

conprehensive plan to address those risks and needs. The
pretrial services program was a nechanism to encourage
offenders at a teachable nonent. She shared that she had
worked as a crimnal defense attorney, and the first thing
she would do was put her client in a treatnment program She
stressed that just after an arrest or charge was a crisis
moment where the offender could see and feel how their
lives had beconme out of control. She stressed that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 04/01/16 8:05 A M



ability to go into treatnment at a nonent that they were
receptive to do so, in many cases, changed their lives and
positively inpacted their sentence. The federal system had
used pretrial services for decades. The pretrial services
kept the offender in the comunity safely by nonitoring
them in a public safety mnded fashion. She felt that it
was far nore effective than the third party custodian
system which was a fiction that helped judges and
prosecutors feel that they are pronoting public safety. She
stated that SB 91, through justice reinvestnent, funded
community based treatnent such as substance abuse and
cognitive behavioral treatnent. According to the Washi ngton
State Institute of Public Policy, the single nost effective
way to change an offender's pattern of crimnality was to
require participation in a cognitive behavioral treatnent
programin a comunity. She felt that the treatnent program
coul d be inexpensive and did not require a psychol ogi st.

9:26: 31 AM

Ms. CQutierrez shared that a key to successful reentry was
the ability to find enploynent. She asserted that there
were too many barriers for individuals wth crimna

records to find work. She shared that the American Bar
Associ ation exami ned all of Al aska's statutes and
regulations and found that 1,625 Alaska statutes and
regul ations inposed collateral consequences for offenders
convicted of felonies and m sdeneanors. She shared that
many of the collateral consequences pertained to housing

enpl oynents, the receipt of public assistance, and the
ability to drive a vehicle. She felt that SB 91 would
remedy one of the greatest inpedinents to returning
citizens: the inability to legally drive a vehicle.

Ms. Cutierrez felt that the prison beds should be used for
t he nost dangerous of f enders.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thanked Ms. Gutierrez for her service.

9:32: 24 AM

KATHLEEN MCLAUGHLI N, DI RECTOR, PARTNERS REENTRY CENTER
ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), spoke in support of SB 91.
She remarked that victins and reentrants were often the
sanme person. She felt that SB 91 was safety driven, and
smart on crine. She remarked that the Reentry Center had
been open since 2013. She furthered that there was a real

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 04/01/16 8:05 A M



pl an database. She shared that, of the 2992, on average
there were 60 to 64 people a day. She stated that there was
no waitlist. She remarked that felons or m sdeneanants were
housed i medi ately. She stressed that the first thirty days
were the nost risky. She remarked that the residents nust
partner with the center. She shared that participating in
the program at least three tinmes per week made them | ess
likely to recidivate.

9:37:18 AM

Ms. McLaughlin shared that nany people were released to
Anchorage by default, and SB 91 recognized that people
needed a safe area and comunity. She announced that 34
percent of the center population was Alaska Native. She
stated that 500 of that population were sex offenders. She
remarked that there were sone individuals that were "hard
wired" to nmke dangerous decisions in society. She shared
that the sexual offenders needed to be accountable, and the
communities nust heal a restorative justice nodel. She felt
that individuals nust be held accountable and keep
communities safe. She stated that the center was able to
exam ne what works and does not work. She stressed that a
reentry plan nust be evidence based and analyzed. She
stated that the centered had partnered wth other reentry
progranms. She pointed out that the Vivitrol Program worked
well. She stated that people were given vivitrol shots on
the day of their release, to reduce heroin overdoses upon
rel ease. She shared that there was a reentrant who died of
a heroin overdose during a celebration of obtaining a job.
She stressed that addiction affected all of society. She
stated that the center's housing was sonetinmes contingent
on using vivitrol. She shared that there were currently 49
peopl e, and 28 had chosen to use vivitrol, and only 4 had
reci di vated. Those four had not taken a second shot. She
stressed that 19, of the 21 who refused vivitrol, had
recidivated. She felt that the new program was successful
She shared that the center partnered with the health
clinic, and people were signed up for Medicaid to cover the
cost of the shots.

9:44: 37 AM

Ms. McLaughlin shared that there was a reentry coordinator
in DOC, who was notivated to examne the right thing for
society. She stressed that nost of the people who were
currently incarcerated, would be released. She shared that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 04/01/16 8:05 A M



one-half of the Alaska Natives in the center did not want
to be in Anchorage, therefore there was a programto return
them to their communities. She stated that there was work
with DOC to return those individuals to their communities.
She stressed that sone natives had great trouble finding
work in the urban community. She stressed that the person
must be invited back to their comrunity, before they were
returned honme. She invited the community to tour the
center. She stressed that transparency and data driven
services were the nost inportant aspects of the center.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted that there was work with prisoners
to apply for assistance progranms prior to their release
from jail. She did not believe those efforts were allowed
under state law. She shared that her office had been
contacted about drafting a technical amendnent to allow for
applications prior to release. Ms. CQutierrez responded that
there was already work to prepare Medicaid applications
She remarked that individuals who were 30 days or less from
release from either a halfway house or institution; they
were able to prepare Medicaid applications. She stated that
those in the halfway house would go to the center, and the
United Way and Alaska Food Coalition assist in those
applications. She stressed that those applications would
not becone effective wuntil the date of release. She
restated that there would be no benefits granted prior to
rel ease. She stressed that those individuals would be put
in the queue.

9:50: 31 AM

JAYSON WHI TESI DE, DVISSON O MOTOR VEH CLES (DW),
ANCHORACGE (vi a tel econference), introduced hinself.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried coments in the proposed changes
to the driver's license provision. M. Witeside replied
that the DW was in support of the section that allowed
drivers to reobtain driving privileges after an acquitta
or case throw out. He stated that there was a snmall
percentage of people who had an admnistrative |icense
revocation for various reasons. He stressed that there had
never been a clause in the law to address those
individuals. He felt that the bill would provide relief for
the drivers that fell under that category.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon discussed the following neeting' s
agenda.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 04/01/16 8:05 A M



Senator Dunl eavy requested an exami nation of other state's
unbrella concepts of sexual assault. M. Schilling replied
that he would examine how other states treated sex
of fenders in regard to discretionary parole.

Senator Dunleavy wanted to know if the state's treated
different types of sexual assaults. He wondered if the
sexual assault offenders were treated differently from one
another. M. Schilling responded that he believed that the
states accomopdated for the different spectrunms of sex
of fenses. He agreed to provide further information.

Senator Dunl eavy wondered if the states that had a drop in
recidivism should be examined to determ ne whether they
treat sex offenses properly. M. Schilling agreed to
provi de that information.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether other states had "carved
out" specific offenses, such as sexual assault; and whet her
crinmes against children were tried in a different nmanner.
M. Schilling agreed to provide that information.

Vice-Chair Mcciche recommended Section 11.41.434, because
it addressed sexual abuse of a mnor. He wondered why there
was a logic to not prove intent or consent, because a m nor
under a certain age did not have the ability to provide
consent .

GARY FOLCGER, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY, ANCHORACGE (via
t el econference), introduced hinself.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried a position on the bill. M.
Fol ger replied that he was in support of the bill.

SB 91 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
9: 55: 58 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:55 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 04/01/16 8:05 A M



